
Court of Appeal Case No. 708236 

Superior Court Case No. 13-2-19543-7 SEA 

IN THE COURT OF APPEAL OF WASHINGTON 

DIVISION I 

ERIK MOSEID et ai, 
Plaintiffs and Appellants 

vs. 

U.S. BANK, NA et ai, 
Defendant and Respondent. 

Appeal from the Washington Superior Court for King County 
Honorable Monica Benton, Judge 

AMENDED RESPONDENT'S BRIEF 
BY 

SELENE FINANCE LP AS SERVICER AND ATTORNEY IN FACT TO U.S. 
BANK, TRUST, N.A. AS INDENTURE TRUSTEE OF CASTLE PEAK 2011-1 

LOAN TRUST, MORTGAGE BACKED NOTES, SERIES 2011-1, 
ERRONEOUSLY SUED AS U.S. BANK, N.A. AS TRUSTEE FOR SERIES #2011-1 

CERTIFICA TES 

WRIGHT FINLAY & ZAK, LLP 
Renee M. Parker (W A State Bar #36995) 

rmparker@wrightlegal.net 
4665 MacArthur Court, Ste. 280 

Newport Beach, CA 92660 
Tel: (949) 477-5050 
Fax: (949) 608-9142 

Attorneys for Defendant and Respondent, SELENE FINANCE LP 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

1. STATEMENT OF FACTS ............................................ .. ........................................................ 1 

2. STATEMENT OF THE CASE .......................................... ..................................................... 3 

3. STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES ............................................................................................ 6 

4. STANDARD OF REVIEW ..................................................................................................... 6 

5. LEGAL ANALYSIS ............................................................................................................... 7 

A. RULE CR 15(A) IS NOT APPLICABLE BECAUSE APPELLANTS NEVER 
REQUESTED LEAVE TO AMEND THEIR COMPLAINT ............................................ 7 

B. THE COURT PROPERLY GRANTED RESPONDENT'S MOTION TO DISMISS 
UNDER 12(b)(6) BECAUSE THE COMPLAINT FAILED TO STATE A CAUSE OF 
ACTION FOR WHICH APPELLANTS COULD OBTAIN RELIEF: ........................... 10 

C. APPELLANTS CLAIMS WERE BARRED BY THE WAIVER DOCTRINE OF RCW 
61.24.130: ......................................................................................................................... 15 

D. COLLATERAL ESTOPPEL WAS APPROPRIATE BECAUSE APPELLANTS 
SECOND LAWSUIT AROSE FROM THE SAME NUCLEUS OF FACTS, AND 

NAMED ESSENTIALLY THE SAME DEFENDANTS, AS THEIR FIRST LAWSUIT: 
........................................................................................................................................... 18 

E. THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT MISINTERPRET CASE LAW: ................................... 21 

6. CONCLUSION ....................... ............................................................................................... 23 

APPENDIX ....................... ........................................... .......................... ... ....... .............................. .. 1 

COMPLAINT FILED IN UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT, WESTERN 
DISTRICT OF WASHINGTON, CASE NO. 2: 13-CV-00363-MJP AS DOCKET ITEM 

NO. 1 ......................................................... .......................................................................... 2 

ORDER FROM UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT, WESTERN DISTRICT OF 
WASHINGTON, CASE NO. 2: 13-CV-00363-MJP AS DOCKET ITEM NO. 7 ............. 36 



TABLE OF AUTHORITIES 

Cases 

Albice v. Premier Mortg. Svcs. Of Wash., Inc. , 157 Wash.App 912, 239 P.3d 1148 (Wash.App. 

Div. 2, 2010) .................... ........... ....... ........ .. .......................... ............... ...................... .. ............. 22 

Ashcroftv. Iqbal, 556 U.S. 662, 129 S.Ct. 1937 (2009) ......... .. .. .. ..... .. ..... ... .. ... .. .. ... .... .. ... ..... ... .. .. 10 

Bell At!. Corp. v. Twombly, 550U.S. 544,127 S.Ct. 1955 (2007) ..... .... ............. ..... .. ...... 10, 11, 12 

Block v. City of Gold Bar, 2014 WL 1210601 (Wash.App. Div.1 2014) ..................................... 18 

Christensen v. Grant County Hosp. Dist. No. 1, 152 Wn.2d 299, 96 P.3d 957 (2004) ............ .. .. 19 

Christensen v. Swedish Hosp., 59 Wash.2d 545, 368 P.2d 897 (1962) ................... .. ................... 11 

Deschamps v. Mason County Sheriffs Office, 123 Wn.App. 551 , 96 P.3d 413 (2004) ... .... ... ...... . 7 

Evans v. Bank of New York Mellon, 2011 WL 4007386 at *2 (E.D.Wash. 2011) ................. 10, 11 

Hines v. Todd Pac. Shipyards Corp., 127 Wn.App. 356, 112 P.3d 522 (2005) .. .......... .. .... ... .. ...... 7 

In re Stac Electronics Securities Litigation, 89 F.3d 1399 (9th Cir.1996) .. ... .............................. 11 

In re VeriFone Sec. Litg., 11 F.3d 865 (9th Cir. 1993) ................................................................. 11 

In re Wash. Mut., Inc. Securities, Derivative & ERISA Litigation, 2011 WL 1158387 at *3 

(W.D.Wash. 2011) ........ .......... ........... .. .... ... .... ...... ... .. ... .. .................................................... ... .. .. 11 

Inolno, Inc. v. City of Bellevue, 132 Wn.2d 103, 937P.2d 154,943 P.2d 1358 (1997) ............. .. 7 

King v. Seattle, 84 Wash.2d 239,525 P.2d 228 (1974) .............................................. .. ..... .. ......... 18 

Neitzke v. Williams, 490 U.S. 319, 109 S.Ct. 1827, 104 L.Ed.2d 338 (1989) ............................ .. 11 

Northwest Animal Rights Networkv. State, 158 Wash.App 237, 242 P.3d 891 (Wash.App. Div. 

1, 2010) ....................... ... .. ..... ..... ... .. .. ....... ... ....... ...... .. .. ...... ... ............................................ ..... .... 10 

Panagacos v. Towery, 501 Fed.Appx 620 (Wash. 2012) .. .. .. ..... ..... .... .... .. .......... ... ... ........... ... ..... 10 

Peoples Nat 'I Bank of Wash. V Ostrander, 6 Wash. App. 28 (1971) ........... .. .... .... .. ... .... .... .... .... 17 

Plein v. Lackey, 149 Wn. 2d 214, 67 P.3d 1061 (2003) ............. ................. ....... ... ... .... ..... ....... .... 16 

Rodriguez v. Loudeye Corp., 144 Wash.App 709, 729, 189 P.3d 168 (2008) .... ...................... .. 8, 9 

Seattle-First Nat. Bank v. Kawachi, 91 Wash.2d 223,588 P.2d 725 (1978) .... .. ........... .. ....... .... .. 18 

Shelton v. Azar, Inc., 90 Wash.App 923, 954 P.2d 352 (Div. 1, 1998) ...... ... ......................... .. ...... 6 

Steward v. Good, 51 Wash. App. 108, 114 (1988) .. .... ........... .. ..... .. .. ..... ... .... ....... ............. ... ........ 17 

ii 



Tenore v. AT&T Wireless Servs., 136 Wash.2d 322, 962 P.2d 104 (1998) .................................... 7 

Walton v. Eaton, 563 F.2d 66, 71 (C.A.3 (Pa.) 1977) .................................................................. 21 

Wilson v. Horsley, 137 Wash.App.2d 500,974 P.2d 316 (1999) ................................................... 8 

World Wide Video of Wash., Inc. v. City of Spokane , 125 Wn.App. 289,103 P.3d 1265 (2005) 19 

Statutes 

RCW 61 .24 ................................................... .............. .................................................................. 22 

RCW 61.24.040 ............................................................................................................. .... ....... 6,15 

RCW 61.24.127 .................... .............. .......................................................................................... 17 

RCW 61.24.130 ................................................................. .................. ......................................... 16 

Treatises 

3A Karl B. Tegland, Washington Practice: Rules Practice, § CR 12 at 266 ................................ 12 

iii 



1. STATEMENT OF FACTS 

On November 17, 2006, in order to purchase the real property 

located at 12708 167th Place NE, Redmond, WA 98052 ("Property"), 

Appellants Erik Moseid and Dianna V. Moseid, husband and wife 

(collectively "Appellants") executed a Note, secured by a recorded Deed 

of Trust ("Deed of Trust"), in the amount of $600,000.00 (hereinafter 

"Loan" collectively) [CP 5, 69-85]. The Deed of Trust identified the 

lender as Credit Suisse Financial Corporation ("Credit Suisse"), the trustee 

as LSI Title, and the beneficiary under the Deed of Trust as Mortgage 

Electronic Registration Systems, Inc. ("MERS"), solely as nominee for 

Credit Suisse [CP 5]. Appellants defaulted under the terms of the Loan, 

and foreclosure proceedings were initiated. 

An Assignment of the Deed of Trust was recorded that transferred 

all beneficial interest of Credit Suisse, through nominee MERS, to "U.S. 

National Bank, National Association, not in its individual capacity, but 

solely as Owner Trustee for CPCA Trust 1" was recorded on April 4, 2011 

("US Bank") [CP 45, 87-89]. An Appointment of Successor Trustee that 

named Karen L. Gibbon, P.S. ("Gibbon") as the appointed successor 

trustee was recorded by the assignee on or around July 5, 2011 [CP 45, 

91]. Additional Assignments of Mortgage were recorded on December 

28, 2011, March 8, 2013, and April 16, 2013 to correct various 

1 



typographical errors [CP 45-46, 93-99]. Selene Finance LP ("Selene") is 

attorney in fact and servicer for US Bank [CP 42]. 

In order to stop the foreclosure sale, Appellants first filed an action 

in the Western District of Washington, Case No.2: 13-cv-00363-MJP on 

February 28, 2013 ("First Lawsuit") alleging Wrongful Foreclosure, 

Breach of Contract, Intentional Infliction of Emotional Distress, Slander 

of Title, Breach of Fiduciary Duty, Breach of Quasi-Fiduciary Duty, 

Violation of Fair Debt Collection Practices Act (15 U.S.c. § 1601), 

Violation of Fair Credit Reporting Act (15 U.S.C. § 1681), and Violation 

of RESPA (12 U.S.C. § 2603) [CP 44, 157, Appendix 2-35]. Plaintiffs' 

request for a Temporary Restraining Order ("TRO") was denied on 

February 28, 2013 [CP 8, 44, 59-63]. Appellants did not oppose 

Respondents' Motion to Dismiss and the motion was granted [CP 44, 65-

67]. Appellants did not seek appellate review of this dismissal. 

On October 23, 2012, due to Appellants' continued default on the 

Loan, then in the amount of $110,605.92, Gibbon recorded a Second 

Amended Notice of Trustee's Sale having a sale date of March 1, 2013 

[CP 46, 101-104]. On March 15, 2013, with the default still uncured and 

Appellants having failed to pursue mediation or effectively obtain a 

judicial pre-sale remedy, a Trustee's Sale was held [CP 46, 106-108]. 
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Appellants filed a second complaint in the Superior Court of 

Washington, King County, arising from the same nucleus of facts as the 

First. Lawsuit alleging claims for wrongful foreclosure, and asking for 

cancellation of the Trustee's Deed Upon Sale or that it be set aside, 

damages from Wrongful Foreclosure, and damages of Estoppel of 

Reformation of Contract ("Second Lawsuit") [CP 51]. The Court in the 

Second Lawsuit granted Respondent's Motion to Dismiss with prejudice 

on July 29, 2013, finding that Appellants' Complaint failed to plead a 

cause of action [CP 162-163]. Appellants then filed this appeal. 

2. STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

Appellants obtained a loan in order to purchase the Property; the 

amount of the loan was $600,000.00 when originated. Appellants 

defaulted after failure to tender funds for the payment due March 1, 2010, 

which is less than four years after Appellants obtained the loan [CP 102]. 

Appellants admit they fell behind on Loan payments due to periods 

of unemployment and reduced income [CP 5-7]. Appellants have 

continued to reside in the Property without payment to Respondent for a 

period of over four years, during which time Respondent was forced to 

make payments for property taxes consisting of $3,197.07, in order to 

protect its security in interest in the property, at the time the Notice of 

Trustee's Sale was recorded. [CP 102]. 
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Due to the failure of Appellants to cure the default, a lawful non

judicial foreclosure of the property was initiated pursuant to the terms of 

the Loan, and a Second Amended Notice of Trustee's Sale was recorded 

on October 25, 2012. At that time the amount of default was $110,605.92. 

[CP 101-104]. 

Instead of taking steps to cure this default or pursue mediation, 

Appellants filed the First Lawsuit two days prior to the scheduled 

Trustee's Sale, which was initially scheduled on February 28, 2013 [CP 

44, Appendix 6]. Appellants ' request for a TRO was denied in the First 

Lawsuit because the Court found that Appellants were unlikely to succeed 

on the merits of Appellants' claims [CP 59-63]. 

Appellants did not oppose Respondent ' s Motion to Dismiss the 

First Lawsuit and Respondent's motion was granted on April 23, 2013 [CP 

65-67] . Appellants did not amend their complaint, but instead filed the 

Second Lawsuit on or about May 13, 2013, which was two full months 

after the date the Trustee's Sale was held. [CP 106-108] . 

In the Second Lawsuit, giving rise to this Appeal, Respondent filed 

a Motion to Dismiss, to which Appellants filed an Opposition. [CP 42-57]. 

After oral argument an Order dismissing Appellants ' Complaint, with 

prejudice, was issued by the Court on or about July 29, 2013 [CP 162-

163]. 
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Appellants' Opening Brief dated March 17, 2014 ("Opening 

Brief') inaccurately states that in the Second Lawsuits Appellants were 

denied leave to amend their Complaint, Page 8, but Appellants fail to 

mention that they never filed a motion to amend the complaint in the 

Second Lawsuit as required under CR 15, which is supported by the case 

docket. Further, a review of the Verbatim Report of CD Recorded 

Proceedings ("Transcript"), transmitted to this Court on or about January 

29, 2014 by the Superior Court Clerk, confirms that Appellants never 

requested leave to amend the Complaint at any time during oral argument. 

Another inaccuracy by Appellants, contained in the second full 

paragraph of Page 9 of Appellants' Opening Brief, is the contention that 

the Second Lawsuit is the "original complaint" on this matter, when in fact 

the Second Lawsuit was Appellants second attempt to litigate their 

wrongful foreclosure claim and the causes of action stemming therefrom. 

Lastly, Appellants allege they were denied a loan modification by 

Citibank, never provided proof of any offer of a trial or permanent loan 

modification from any party named in any lawsuit, never filed a lawsuit 

against Citibank or named it as a defendant in either lawsuit, and removed 

all mention of Acqura in their Opening Brief. See Opening Brief, Pages 

3-4, which references CP 6-7. Accordingly, these allegations are irrelevant 

for purposes ofthis appeal and cannot properly be considered here. 
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3. ST ATEMENT OF THE ISSUES 

The issues stated in Appellants' appeal are as follows: 

(1) Did the trial court abuse its discretion by declining to grant 

Appellants leave to amend their original complaint consistent with 

Appellants' request and CR 15? 

(2) Did the trial court abuse its discretion (sic) insofar as its 

granting the CR 12(b)(6) motion was based on the waiver rule in RCW 

61.24.040 (sic)? 

(3) Did the trial court abuse its discretion (sic) insofar as its 

granting the CR 12(b)(6) motion was (sic) based upon Washington (sic) 

claim preclusion doctrine? 

4. ST ANDARD OF REVIEW 

The standard of review for denial of a motion to amend under is 

abuse of discretion: "Generally, courts are to freely allow parties to amend 

their pleadings: 'leave shall be freely given when justice so requires' ... But 

a trial court may also consider whether pursuit of the new claim would be 

futile. A decision to grant or deny a motion to amend is reviewed for an 

abuse of discretion." Shelton v. Azar, Inc., 90 Wash.App 923, 928, 954 

P.2d 352 (Div. 1, 1998). See also Ina Ina, Inc. v. City of Bellevue, 132 

Wn.2d 103,142,937 P.2d 154,943 P.2d 1358 (1997); Hines v. Todd Pac. 

Shipyards Corp., 127 Wn.App. 356, 374- 75, 112 P.3d 522 (2005); 
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Deschamps v. Mason County Sheriff's Office, 123 Wn.App. 551, 563, 96 

P.3d 413 (2004). 

The standard of review for dismissal under CR 12(b)( 6) is de novo: 
Whether a dismissal is appropriate under CR 12(b)( 6) is a 
question of law that an appellate court reviews de novo. 
Under 12(b)( 6), dismissal is only appropriate if "it appears 
beyond doubt that the plaintiff cannot prove any set of facts 
which would justify recovery." Tenore v. AT&T Wireless 
Servs., 136 Wash.2d 322, 330, 962 P.2d 104 (1998). 
Burton v. Lehman, 153 Wash.2d 416, 422,103 P.3d 1230 (2005). 

5. LEGAL ANALYSIS 

A. RULE CR 15(A) IS NOT APPLICABLE BECAUSE 
APPELLANTS NEVER REQUESTED LEAVE TO AMEND 
THEIR COMPLAINT 

Page 8 of Appellants' Opening Brief states they were denied the 

ability to amend the Complaint under CR 15(a). Respondents point out 

the fact that Appellants never attempted to amend the Complaint either in 

writing or at the hearing on Respondent's Motion to Dismiss. 

Rule CR 15(a) states: 

Amendments. A party may amend the party's pleading once 
as a matter of course at any time before a responsive 
pleading is served or, if the pleading is one to which no 
responsive pleading is permitted and the action has not 
been placed upon the trial calendar, the party may so 
amend it at any time within 20 days after it is served. 
Otherwise, a party may amend the party's pleading only by 
leave of court or by written consent of the adverse party; 
and leave shall be freely given when justice so requires. If a 
party moves to amend a pleading, a copy of the proposed 
amended pleading, denominated "proposed" and unsigned, 
shall be attached to the motion. If a motion to amend is 
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granted, the moving party shall thereafter file the amended 
pleading and, pursuant to rule 5, serve a copy thereof on all 
other parties. A party shall plead in response to an amended 
pleading within the time remaining for response to the 
original pleading or within 10 days after service of the 
amended pleading, whichever period may be the longer, 
unless the court otherwise orders. 

Appellants cite Wilson v. Horsley, 137 Wash.App.2d 500, 505, 974 

P.2d 316 (1999) as support that "a trial court should freely grant leave to 

amend when justice so requires." Opening Brief, Page 8. Page 9 of 

Appellants' Opening Brief further argues that "the trial court's failure to 

explain its reason for denying leave to amend may amount to an abuse of 

discretion." Rodriguez v. Loudeye Corp., 144 Wash.App 709, 729, 189 

P.3d 168 (2008). 

The facts III Wilson v. Horsley do not support Appellant's 

contentions. Defendant Horsley made a motion to amend his responsive 

pleading after arbitration took place. The request was denied, within the 

trial court's discretion, because allowing the amendment would be 

"grossly unfair" and prejudicial; the Court also pointed out that Horsley's 

right to amend had expired. !d. at 507. 

Appellants use of Rodriguez is similarly misplaced; unlike the case 

before this Court, the appellant in Rodriguez requested leave to amend his 

complaint, but failed to comply with CRI5(a). The Appellate Court 
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affirmed the Trial Court' s decision due to the failure. As a result, even 

here Appellants would not have a reviewable claim under Rodriguez. 

Rodriguez does address facts similar to Appellants' actions III 

stating "the case upon which they [defendants] rely, Washington Co-op. 

Chick Ass'n v. Jacobs , involved a complete failure to request leave to 

amend. There, the trial court dismissed the complaint without leave to 

amend, and the plaintiff did not request leave to amend. On appeal , the 

court declined to consider the plaintiffs challenge to the trial court's denial 

of leave to amend because it was not submitted to the trial court." 

Rodriguez at 729 (citing Washington Co-op. Chick Ass'n v. Jacobs, 42 

Wash.2d 460, 256 P.2d 294 (1953). 

Here, the Case Transcript, Superior Court Case Summary 

("Docket"), and the Transcript from the hearing on Respondent's Motion 

to Dismiss, all show that Appellants never made a request to amend the 

Complaint, either in writing or verbally at the hearing. 

Significantly, nowhere in Appellants' Opening Brief do Appellants 

set forth what any amendment would include that might cure the pleading 

defects noted in Respondent ' s Motion to Dismiss. This Court is not 

required to guess, and an amendment that will not cure legal defects will 

not be sufficient. Northwest Animal Rights Network v. State, 158 

Wash.App 237, 247-48, 242 P.3d 891 (Div. 1,2010) ("Here, the additional 
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allegations contained in the Network's second amended complaint would 

not cure the above-identified justiciability defects. Thus, the Network's 

amendment was futile . Accordingly the trial court did not abuse its 

discretion by denying the amendment."). 

Therefore Appellants ' argument fails as a matter of law and 

dismissal of the Complaint was proper. 

B. THE COURT PROPERLY GRANTED RESPONDENT'S 
MOTION TO DISMISS UNDER 12(b)(6) BECAUSE THE 
COMPLAINT FAILED TO STATE A CAUSE OF ACTION 
FOR WHICH APPELLANTS COULD OBTAIN RELIEF: 

Appellants contend that Respondent ' s Motion to Dismiss under CR 

12(b)(6) was improperly granted. Opening Brief, Page 9. However, case 

law supports the Court's dismissal of Appellant's Complaint because 

Appellants did not contain any facts that would support a claim for relief. 

"To survive a motion to dismiss, a complaint must contain 

sufficient factual matter, accepted as true, to 'state a claim to relief that is 

plausible on its face. ' " Ashcroft v. Iqbal, 556 U.S. 662, 678, 129 S.Ct. 

1937 (2009) (quoting Bell At!. Corp. v. Twombly, 550 U.S. 544, 570, 127 

S.Ct. 1955 (2007» . See also Panagacos v. Towery, 501 Fed.Appx 620, 

622 (Wash. 2012), Evans v. Bank of New York Mellon , 2011 WL 4007386 

(E.D.Wash. 2011), In re Wash. Mut. , Inc. Securities, Derivative & ERISA 

Litigation, 2011 WL 1158387 (W.D.Wash. 2011)(not reported in 
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F.Supp.2d) (Christensen v. Swedish Hosp., 59 Wash.2d 545, 368 P.2d 897 

(1962) involves pleading requirements for a tort claim and is not 

applicable here). 

"The sole issue raised by a 12(b)( 6) motion is whether the facts 

pleaded, if established, would support a claim for relief; no matter how 

improbable the facts alleged are, they must be accepted as true for 

purposes of the motion." Evans v. Bank of New York Mellon, 2011 WL 

4007386 at *2 (E.D.Wash. 2011) (citing Neitzke v. Williams, 490 U.S. 

319,326-27,109 S.Ct. 1827,104 L.Ed.2d 338 (1989)). "The trial court is 

not required to accept conclusory allegations or legal characterizations as 

being the truth." In re Stac Electronics Securities Litigation, 89 F.3d 1399, 

1403 (9th Cir.1996) (citing In re VeriFone Sec. Litg., 11 F.3d 865, 868 

(9th Cir. 1993): "Conclusory allegations of law and unwarranted 

inferences are insufficient to defeat a motion to dismiss for failure to state 

a claim."). 

A complaint must plead something more than labels and 

conclusions, and a "formulaic recitation of the elements of a cause of 

action will not suffice." Bell Atl. Corp., 550 U.S. at 555-556. "Factual 

allegations must be enough to raise a right to relief above the speculative 

level ... on the assumption that all the allegations in the complaint are true 

(even if doubtful in fact) .... " Id. 
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First, Appellants ' Complaint admits that they executed the Note 

and Deed of Trust, that they experienced a loss of income for an extended 

period of time, and adversely offered their inability to make payments on 

the Loan [CP 5-7] . 

Second, the Record does not support Appellants ' causes of action 

concerning an alleged improper denial of a loan modification. In fact, 

Citibank and Acqura,l the only parties claimed to have granted trial 

modifications but later denying permanent modifications [CP 6-7] , were 

not named as defendants in either the First Lawsuit or Second Lawsuit 

despite allegation of their activities being the basis of Appellants ' claim. 

To the extent Appellants true issue goes to a claim of an improper 

denial of a permanent loan modification, Appellants did not name the 

correct parties in the Complaint, i.e. the parties who allegedly made that 

promise. The complaint was simply defective and dismissal with prejudice 

was appropriate. See 3A Karl B. Tegland, Washington Practice: Rules 

Practice, § CR 12 at 266 (discussing the paucity of cases addressing issue 

but noting federal rule that dismissal is with prejudice unless the trial 

court's specifies otherwise). "). 

Third, Respondent was not legally obligated to modify Appellants 

loan [CP 50]; banks are not required to make loan modifications to each 

J Acqura is not mentioned in Appellants' Opening Brief, but is named extensively 
throughout the Complaint subject to this appeal. See CP 6-7, Paragraph 14. 
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and every borrower who applies for a modification under HAMP, and 

courts have routinely held there is no private right to enforce HAMP. See 

e.g. Hoffman v. Bank of America, NA., 2010 WL 2635773 , at 3 (N.D.Cal. 

2010). Appellants confirm that Respondent considered but denied their 

request for a loan modification [CP 7-8] . Nothing more was required. 

This fact is important because Appellants' First Cause of Action, to set 

aside the Trustee's Sale, is based on Appellants failure to obtain a loan 

modification and not procedural irregularity ("Plaintiffs is ( sic) is 

attempting to set aside this trustee's sale on grounds other than 

irregularities in the sale notice or procedure." [CP 9-10]). 

Fourth, Appellants' Second Cause of Action in the Complaint 

seeks to cancel the Trustee's Deed Upon Sale based solely on conclusory 

allegations or legal characterizations instead of any triable issue: "The 

claims of Defendant are based upon a trustee' s deed upon sale purportedly 

executed by Defendant Law Office and purporting to convey the property 

to Defendant ... Although the trustee's deed upon sale may appear valid on 

its face, it is invalid, void and of no force or effect regarding Plaintiffs 

interests and rights in the Property for the reasons set out in Paragraph 25 

of this Complaint." [CP 10]. Paragraph 25 states "Plaintiffs incorporates 

(sic) herein by reference each and every allegation contained in 

Paragraphs 1 through 21 , and 23, inclusive, of this Complaint." [CP 10]. 
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Paragraphs 1 through 21 and 23 contain Appellants' recitation of facts, not 

any reviewable claim. 

Fifth, Appellants' Third Cause of Action in the Complaint, which 

only cites "failures, refusals, and neglect in conducting the purported 

foreclosure sale of March 8, 2013 ... " [CP 11] is directly contradicted by 

Appellants' statements in the First Cause of Action. In their First Cause of 

Action Appellants specifically state "Plaintiffs is (sic) attempting to set 

aside this trustee's sale on grounds other than irregularities in the sale 

notice or procedure" (emphasis added) [CP 9-10]. No reviewable claim is 

provided to support Appellants' Third Cause of Action and it failed as a 

matter of law. 

Sixth, Appellants' Fourth Cause of Action contained in CP 11-12 

(demanding "estoppel to deny reformation") appears to recite 

Respondent's denial of Appellants' loan modification as its only grounds 

("The acts and practices of Defendants, and each of them, described in the 

foregoing paragraphs of this Complaint establish an agreement between 

Plaintiffs and Defendants, and each of them, to revise the loan 

arrangement and that Defendants are estopped to deny the agreement to 

revise the loan arrangement." Paragraph 33, CP 11]. 

Even Appellants' own exhibits to the Complaint, consisting of 

Respondent's letter acknowledging receipt of Appellants' application for a 
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loan modification and providing a point of contact, and the subsequent 

denial letter, belie any and all implication that Respondent misled 

Appellants with respect to the loan modification, gave an impression that a 

loan modification would be granted, or that Respondent granted a trial 

loan modification at any time [CP 37-40]. The exhibits on the Record are 

in direct contradiction of Appellants' statements and implications that 

Respondent offered a the Appellants a loan modification. 

Because Appellants could not state any claims upon which relief 

could be granted, Appellants' arguments fail as a matter of law and 

dismissal of the Complaint was proper. 

C. APPELLANTS CLAIMS WERE BARRED BY THE 
WAIVER DOCTRINE OF RCW 61.24.130: 

Appellants' alternatively argue that the Court erred III granting 

Respondent's motion under CR 12(b)(6) by "declining leave to amend 

based upon RCW 61.24.040 ... ". Opening Brief, Page 9. As established 

above, Appellants never requested leave to amend the Complaint. 

Accordingly there is no correlation between any request for leave to 

amend the Complaint and the waiver doctrine. 

Respondents never directed the waiver doctrine to any specific 

section of Appellants' Complaint, so Appellants' last paragraph on Page 9 

of the Opening Brief is unclear (Appellants state "the third claim for relief 
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in the Complaint[ ] seeks money damages only .. . [and] it doesn' t apply 

because it requires an action to stay the trustee's sale be filed before the 

sale, and that's exactly what Appellants did here."). 

Appellants were not in a position to seek to stay of the foreclosure 

when the Complaint was filed in the Second Lawsuit and acknowledged 

this fact in the Complaint (Appellants stated that as a result of the 

foreclosure sale Appellants sustained "damages in an amount presently 

unknown, but upon information and belief, within the jurisdictional limits 

of this Court... [Appellants] will either amend this Complaint to set out 

the amounts of damages sustained when ascertained, or, alternatively, will 

conform this Complaint to proof at trial." [CP 11 D. 

It is established that failure to obtain pre-sale remedies under the 

Washington Deed of Trust Act generally results in the waiver of one's 

right to object to a property sale. (RCW 61.24.130; see also Plein v. 

Lackey, 149 Wn. 2d 214,67 P.3d 1061 (2003)). 

Washington Courts have held that post-sale challenges to a 

nonjudicial foreclosure are waived when, a party: "(1) received notice of 

the right to enjoin the sale, (2) had actual or constructive knowledge of a 

defense to foreclosure prior to the sale, and (3) failed to bring an action to 

obtain a court order enjoining the sale." Steward v. Good, 51 Wash. App. 
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108, 114 (1988) (Denied, 111 Wn.2d 1004 (1988)); Peoples Nat 'I Bank of 

Wash. V Ostrander, 6 Wash. App. 28 (1971). 

In 2009, the legislature enacted RCW 61.24.127 to set forth certain 

statutory exceptions to the waiver rule. While failure to bring a civil action 

to enjoin a non-judicial foreclosure does not necessarily waive a 

borrower's ability to bring forth a claim post-sale, the Deed of Trust Act is 

explicit in limiting the nature of such post-sale claims. The Post-sale 

claims are limited to (1) common law fraud or misrepresentation (2) 

consumer protection act violations, (3) failure of the trustee to materially 

comply with the Deed of Trust Act, and (4) violation ofRCW §61.24.026. 

See RCW61.24.127(1). 

Here Appellants admit they received pre-sale notice of the right to 

enjoin the sale when they filed the First Lawsuit in the Western District of 

Washington on February 28, 2013, which referenced the Notice of 

Trustee' s Sale in their Complaint [Appendix #2-35]. The District Court 

denied Appellants' request for TRO because no grounds existed that 

showed Appellants would succeed on the merits oftheir case [CP 59-63]. 

In an attempt to judicially rescind Respondent's legally conducted 

foreclosure, Appellants then filed the Second Lawsuit based on 

implausible statements, conclusory allegations of law, and unwarranted 

inferences from unsupported claims. Having failed again, they now look to 
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this Court for the same relief, but cannot circumvent the waiver rule. The 

dismissal of Appellants' Complaint was proper. 

D. COLLATERAL ESTOPPEL WAS APPROPRIATE 
BECAUSE APPELLANTS SECOND LAWSUIT AROSE 
FROM THE SAME NUCLEUS OF FACTS, AND NAMED 
ESSENTIALL Y THE SAME DEFENDANTS, AS THEIR 
FIRST LAWSUIT: 

Appellants' Second Lawsuit essentially brought suit against the 

same defendants named in the First Lawsuit, and for claims that arose 

from foreclosure of the Subject Property [CP 1, Appendix 2-35]. 

Appellants abandoned their case in the First Lawsuit, failed to defend 

against Respondent's motion to dismiss the complaint, and did not attempt 

to amend their complaint to address their deficiencies [Appendix 36-38]. 

"The doctrine of collateral estoppel differs from res judicata in 

that, instead of preventing a second assertion of the same claim or cause of 

action, it prevents a second litigation of issues between the parties, even 

though a different claim or cause of action is asserted." Seattle-First Nat. 

Bank v. Kawachi, 91 Wash.2d 223, 227, 588 P.2d 725 (1978) (citing King 

v. Seattle, 84 Wash.2d 239, 525 P.2d 228 (1974)). See also Block v. City 

of Gold Bar, 2014 WL 1210601 at*5 (Div.l 2014). 

"A party seeking to apply collateral estoppel must show that (1) 

the issues in both proceedings are identical; (2) the earlier proceeding 

ended in a judgment on the merits; (3) the party against whom collateral 
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estoppel is asserted was a party to, or in privity with a party to, the earlier 

proceeding; and (4) applying collateral estoppel does not work an injustice 

on the party against whom it is applied." World Wide Video 0/ Wash., Inc. 

v. City a/Spokane, 125 Wn.App. 289, 305, 103 P.3d 1265 (2005) (quoting 

Christensen v. Grant County Hasp. Dist. No. 1, 152 Wn.2d 299,307,96 

P.3d 957 (2004). 

First, the issues in both proceedings are nearly identical. The First 

Lawsuit listed a cause of action for "Wrongful Foreclosure" from which 

all other causes of action flowed. For example, Appellants alleged that the 

Notice of Trustee's Sale and assignments between the parties executed for 

purposes of foreclosure presented damages for Slander of Title [Appendix 

7]. The Second Lawsuit seeks to rescind the foreclosure sale that the First 

Lawsuit sought to prevent from occurring. 

Both cases stem from Appellant's failure to tender payments under 

the terms of the Note and Deed of Trust, which resulted in foreclosure 

proceedings against the Subject Property. Although Appellants cloaked 

the different cases under statutes to suit each venue, both cases cite to the 

Deed of Trust, Assignments, and the Notice of Trustee ' s Sale as the 

primary pieces of evidence. 
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Second, the earlier proceeding ended in a judgment on the merits. 

As noted prior, Appellants lost their First Lawsuit and never filed an 

appeal. 

Third, Respondent can show there is privity between the parties in 

both the First and Second Lawsuit because Appellants were the plaintiffs 

in both lawsuits. The Defendants named in the First Lawsuit were Selene 

Finance LP, Credit Suisse Financial Corporation, Mortgage Electronic 

Registration Systems, Inc. ("MERS"), the Law Offices of Karen L. 

Gibbons, P.S., and US Bank Trust, National Association [CP 1-13, 

Appendix 2-35]. 

The Respondent Selene Finance LP was not listed in the caption of 

the Second Lawsuit, but Selene is specifically included as a "party" in 

Paragraph 4 of the Second Lawsuit [CP 2] and is referenced extensively 

throughout the Complaint. The Second Lawsuit also named Credit Suisse, 

US Bank, N.A. , and the Law Offices of Karen Gibbons [CP 1-2]. In fact, 

the only difference between the two lawsuits is the omission of MERS 

from the Second Lawsuit. As a result, the parties in both lawsuits are the 

same. 

Fourth, the application of collateral estoppel in the Second Lawsuit 

does not prejudice or "work an injustice" against Appellants. Appellants 

had ample opportunity to obtain pre-sale remedies when they filed the 
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First Lawsuit. Appellants arguably abandoned litigation of their First 

Lawsuit after denial of their request for a TRO, despite the fact that 

Appellants could have amended their complaint [Appendix36-38]. 

Despite no demonstrated change in circumstances in the time between the 

two cases, and prior to closure of the First Lawsuit, Appellants filed their 

Second Lawsuit [CP 51], with the only exception being a foreclosure sale 

was conducted while the First Lawsuit was pending. 

This issue of collateral estoppel was succinctly addressed by the 

Court in Walton v. Eaton: "[T]he court must insure that the plaintiff does 

not use the incorrect procedure of filing duplicative complaints for the 

purpose of circumventing the rules pertaining to the amendment of 

complaints." Walton v. Eaton, 563 F.2d 66,71 (C.A.3 (Pa.) 1977). 

Appellants should not be rewarded for their failure to prosecute 

and/or amend their Complaint in the First Lawsuit in being allowed to 

litigate the Second Lawsuit. Appellants failed to obtain pre-sale remedies, 

and their post-sale challenge is not allowed by statute. As a result, 

dismissal of Appellants' Complaint was proper. 

E. THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT MISINTERPRET CASE 
LAW: 

Appellants' contend that, with respect to the extinguishment of 

Appellants' interest in the Subject Property after the foreclosure sale, the 

21 



trial court "misread the state supreme court's decision" in Albice v. 

Premier Mortg. Svcs. Of Wash., Inc., 157 Wash.App 912, 239 P.3d 1148 

(Div. 2, 2010). Appellants are mistaken. 

Albice states that a "proper foreclosure action extinguishes the debt 

and transfers title to the property to the beneficiary of the deed of trust or 

to the successful bidder at a public foreclosure sale .... We construe the Act 

to further three objectives: (1) the nonjudicial foreclosure process should 

remain efficient and inexpensive; (2) the process should provide an 

adequate opportunity for interested parties to prevent wrongful 

foreclosure; and (3) the process should promote the stability ofland titles" 

Id. at 920. 

Respondent lawfully conducted its Trustee's Sale during the First 

Lawsuit [CP 48, 106-107], extinguished all interest Appellants had in the 

Subject Property and vested the interest in a party other than Appellants 

before the Second Lawsuit was filed [CP 48]. Appellants did not question 

the procedural aspects of the trustee's sale in the Second Lawsuit, and in 

fact, conversely state they do not dispute any aspect of compliance with 

the Deeds of Trust Act (RCW 61.24): "Plaintiffs is (sic) is attempting to 

set aside this trustee's sale on grounds other than irregularities in the sale 

notice or procedure." [CP 9-10]. 
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Appellants cannot now raIse procedural irregularities in the 

Trustee's Sale on appeal after specifically disclaiming them in the trial 

court Complaint. 

Appellants' arguments as to the Trial Court' s interpretation fail as 

a matter oflaw and dismissal of the Complaint was proper. 

6. CONCLUSION 

Appellants have intolerably abused the judicial system with this 

continued litigation, and have resided in the Subject Property since March 

1, 2010 without payment of any rent. This equates to a loss of thousands 

of dollars for Respondent in lost economic opportunities in expenditures 

for property taxes, insurance, and legal costs in defense of the litigation. 

Appellants' issues have already been litigated in two separate 

forums, and Appellants' Opening Brief offers no viable basis in fact or 

law to warrant a different outcome. 

III 

III 

III 

III 

III 

III 

III 
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For the reasons set forth herein, Respondent respectfully requests 

that this honorable Court affirm the July 29, 2013 Order on Defendants' 

"Motion to Dismiss Plaintiffs' Complaint to Set Aside Trustee's Sale, 

Cancellation of Trustee's Deed Upon Sale, Wrongful Foreclosure, and 

Estoppel of Reformation of Contract." 

Dated: May 19,2014 Respectfully submitted, 

~?AK'L: 
Re:arker, Esq. ' 
Attorneys for Defendant and Respondent, 
SELENE FINANCE LP 
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13-CV-00363-CMP 

__ AlED _ENTERED 
__ lODGED _RECEIVED 

FEB 28 2013 
AT SEAlTLE 

ClERK u.s. OIItNC!.~...nTt\lI 
WESfERM I)ISllIICT OF --... ·okP 

BY 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE WESTERN DISTRICT OF WASHINGTON 

ERIK MOSEID AND DIANNA MOSEID, Pro Per 

Plaintiffs, 

v. 

SELENE FINANCE LP, a Delaware Limited Liability 

Company; 

CREDIT SUISSE FINANCIAL CORPORATION, a 

New York Corporation 

MORTGAGE ELECTRONIC REGISTRATION 

SYSTEMS, INC, a Delaware Corporation 

LAW OFFICES OF KAREN L GlBBSON, P.S., a 

Washington Professional Services Corporation; 

US BANK TRUST, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, a 

Foreign Corporation; 

And JOHN DOES (Investors) 1-10,000, et al. 

Defendants 

caseNO.C 1 3 - 0 8 6 3 
COMPLAINT FOR TEMPORARY 

RESTRAINING ORDER AND PERMANENT 

INJUNCTION; WRONGFUL FORECWSURE; 

BREACH OF CONTRACT; INTENTIONAL 

INFLICTION OF EMOTIONAL DISTRESS; 

SLANDER OF TITLE; BREACH OF FIDUCIARY 

DUTY; BREACH OF QUASI-FIDUCIARY DUTY; 

VIOLATION OF FAIR DEBT COLLECTION 

PRACTICES ACT 15 U.S.C § 1601, ET SEQ, 

VIOLATIONS OF FAIR CREDIT REPORTING 

ACT 15 USC § 1681;VIOLATIONS OF RESPA, 12 

U.S.C § 2603. ET SEQ. AND DEMAND FOR 

TRIAL BY JURY 

COMES NOW, Plaintiffs, ERIK MOSEID AND DIANNA MOSEID, pro per, for this Complaint agains 

the Defendants hereby complains and alleges as follows: 

I. PARTIES 
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1.1 We, Plaintiffs, ERIK MOSEID AND DIANNA MOSEID, are residents of King County, Washington as 

such establishing the jurisdiction of this honorable court. 

1.2 Defendant, SELENE FINANCE LP., Defendant is a Delaware Limited Liability, licensed corporation an 

is licensed to operate in the State of Washington. however did hereby conduct business by, among other things, 

acting as a "debt collector" as defined by FDCPA, 15 USC § 1601. Et seq. Said corporation did conduct busines 

by, among other things, engaging in mortgage lending activities, obtaining security interests in real property 

located in the state of Washington. These activities included acting as a "debt collector" as defined by FDCPA, 1 

USC § 1601. Et seq., The Defendant is also a credit lender and as such governed under the law by The Fair Credi 

Reporting Act 15 USC §1681 et seq. and also reports these accounts to national credit reporting agencies i.e. Tran 

Union, Equifax, Experian and Innovis as well as all national credit reporting agencies. 

1.3 Defendant, CREDIT SUISSE FINANCIAL CORPORATION, is a for-profit Corporation incorporated i 

the State of New York. Defendant- CREDIT SUISSE FINANCIAL CORPORATION is registered with th 

WASHINGTON Secretary of State as CREDIT SUISSE FINANCIAL CORPORATION and is in good standing 

At all times material hereto, Defendant- CREDIT SUISSE FINANCIAL CORPORATION did hereby conduc 

business by, among other things, acting as a "debt collector" as defined by FDCPA, 15 USC § 1601. Et seq. Sai 

corporation did conduct business by, among other things, engaging in mortgage lending activities, obtainin 

security interests in real property located in the state of Washington. These activities included acting as a "deb 

collector:' as defined by FDCPA, 15 USC § 1601. Et seq., The Defendant is also a credit lender and as sue 

governed under the law by The Fair Credit Reporting Act 15 USC §1681 et seq. and also reports these accounts t 

national credit reporting agencies i.e. Trans Union, Equifax, Experian and Innovis as well as all national credi 

reporting agencies .. 

1.4 MORTGAGE ELECTRONIC REGISTRATION SYSTEMS, INC. (hereinafter referred to as "MERS" 

Defendant, is a Delaware corporation that is NOT Licensed to conduct business in the State of Washington 

however, but purports to obtain security interests in real property located in the State of Washington, and purpo 

to have acquired an interest in Plaintiffs' real property first as a "nominee" but also as a "beneficiary" under th 

terms of the CREDIT SUISSE FINANCIAL CORPORATION Deed of Trust executed by Plaintiffs without cle 

recorded documentation to do so. 

1.5 Defendant, LAW OFFICES OF KAREN L GIBBSON, P.S is a for-profit a Washington Professiona 

Services Corporation incorporated in the State of Washington. Defendant- LAW OFFICES OF KAREN 

GIBBSON, P.S is registered with the WASHINGTON Secretary of State and is in good standing. however sai 

corporation purports to obtain security interests in real property located in the State of Washington, as well a 

purporting to have acquired an interest in Plaintiffs' real property as a "Trustee" under the terms of the CREDI 

SUISSE FINANCIAL CORPORATION Deed of Trust (hereinafter referred to as "DT") executed by Plaintiffs. 
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1.6 US BANK TRUST, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION is a Foriegn corporation, a licensed corporation 

however at this date according to the Secretary of State of Washington, is NOT registered with the State 0 

Washington, and is NOT licensed to operate in the State of Washington, however did hereby conduct business by 

among other things, acting as a "debt collector" as defined by FDCP A, 15 USC § 1601. Et seq. Said corporatio 

did conduct business by, among other things, engaging in mortgage lending activities, obtaining security interes 

in real property lo'cated in the state of Washington. These activities included acting as a "debt collector" as define 

by FDCPA, 15 USC § 1601. Et seq., The Defendant is also a credit lender and as such governed under the law b 

The Fair Credit Reporting Act 15 USC §1681 et seq. and also reports these accounts to national credit reportin 

6 agencies i.e. Trans Union, Equifax, Experian and Innovis as well as all national credit reporting agencies. 

7 1.7 At all times mentioned herein, the Defendants, and each of them, were the agents, servants 

8 representatives and/or employees of each of the remaining, Defendants and were acting within the course and scop 

of such agency or employment. The exact terms and conditions of the agency, representation or employmen 
9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

relationships are presently unknown to the Plaintiffs at present, however when the information is ascertained, leav 

of court will be sought to insert the appropriate allegations 

2.1 

II. JUDICIAL NOTICE 

Plaintiffs moves this Honorable Court to take Mandatory Judicial Notice under the Federal Rules of Civi 

Procedure Rule 201 (d) of the following: 

a. The United States Supreme Court, in Haines v Kerner 404 U.S. 519 (1972), said that all litigan 

defending themselves must be afforded the opportunity to present their evidence and that the Court shoul 

look to the substance of the complaint rather than the form. 

b. In Platsky v CIA, 953 F.2d 26 (2"" Cir. 1991), the Circuit Court of Appeals allowed that the Distri 

Court should have explained to the litigant proceeding without a lawyer, the correct form to the Plaintiff 

so that he could have amended his pleadings accordingly. Plaintiffs respectfully reserve the right to amen 

this complaint. 

c. Under the Federal Rules of Evidence 1002 and 1003 governing the admissibility of duplicates, an 

photocopies brought in as evidence are considered to be forgeries. It is unfair to admit a photocopy in th 

place of an original as there are information contained within the original that is not in a photocopy 

specifically the only legally binding chain of title to the promissory note. 

d. Under Uniform Commercial Code- ARTICLE 3 -§3-308, all signatures presented that is not on 

original format (with the original wet ink signature) is hereby denied and is inadmissible. 

III. FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS 

ERIK MOSEID AND DIANNA MOSEID - Complaint for TRO Page 3 of20 

APPENDIX -4 

II 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

3.1 

3.2 

3.3 

3.4 

3.5 

3.6 

Case 2:13-cv-00363-MJP Document 1 Filed 02/28/13 Page 4 of 34 

Plaintiffs has been a victim of the mortgage lending mess created by Wall Street, mortgage lenders, an 

servicers, Defendants named in this complaint, those who engage in an established pattern and busines 

practices designed and intended to deceive and mislead homeowners regarding application of thei 

payments and the amounts owing under promissory notes and deeds of trust, and upon the courts an 

county recorders offices regarding their ownership interest in the promissory notes and deeds of trus 

under which they are collecting fees and/or initiating foreclosures. 

Plaintiffs applied for and obtained a Home loan from Defendant CREDIT SUISSE FINANCI 

CORPORATION in November of 2006. In connection with the making ofthe loan, Plaintiffs executed 

Deed of Trust for Defendant CREDIT SUISSE FINANCIAL CORPORATION, which was recorded i 

the records of King County, Washington on November 29, 2006 under recording numbe 

20061129001410. A copy of the Deed of Trust is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference 

Exhibit "I". That Deed of Trust ("DT') contained a false representation on its face when it represent 

that Defendant MERS was a beneficiary under said DT. 

Paragraph E 

3.3.1 " ... the Beneficiary of this security instrument is fvlERS, (Mortgage Electroni 

Registration Systems, Inc.) . .. " 

The Washington Deed of Trust Act has defined a "Beneficiary" as the holder of the instrument 0 

document evidencing the obligations secured by the deed of trust, excluding persons holding the same a 

security for a different obligation" Laws of 1998 ch 295 1(2),. Codified as RCW 61.24.004(2. Thus, in th 

terms of the certified question, if fvlERS, never held the Promissory Note nor the DT, then it is not 

"lawful Beneficiary" Refer to State of Washington Supreme Court Ruling, dated August 16,2012 #86206 

1 consolidated with #86207-9 Bain vs. Metropolitan Mortgage, MERS, et aI, attached as Exhibit 2 an 

incorporated herein by reference. 

As will be demonstrated below, in the legal Brief by amici curiae attached to and incorporated herein b 

reference as Exhibit "3", in addition see citing in attached brief by Gregory Taylor Appellant v. Deutsch 

Bank National Trust Company as Trustee for FFMLT 2006-FF4, Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates 

Series 2006-FF4 Appellate APPEAL IN CAUSE NO. 05-2008-CA~065811 supports defendants MER 

lack of Standing attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit "4". 

MERS in NOT the beneficiary under the DT, and has never had ownership nor possession of th 

Promissory Note which is the obligation which is secured by the DT, and MERS has never been entitled t 

receive any remuneration from Plaintiffs' Loan Proceeds. The statement that MERS is the "Nominee" i 
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nonsensical language which serves no relevance in a real estate transaction and most certainly, MERS h 

no beneficial interest under the DT. 

Defendant LAW OFFICES OF KAREN L GIBBSON, P.S filed a Notice of Trustee's Sale scheduling 

Trustee's Sale to be held on March 1,2013, in the office of the King County Auditor on October 25, 2012 

under recording number 20121025002258 behalf of Defendant MERS without verifying the validity 0 

said beneficial interest and the role of MERS as a purported "Lender" or "Beneficiary". Said Notice i 

attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit 5. 

Regarding the issue of Defendant MERS alleged status as a "beneficiary" under Defendant CREDI 

SUISSE FINANCIAL CORPORATION Deed of Trust executed by Plaintiffs its own records demonstrat 

the falsity of the information on the document. There is an overwhelming amount of case law emergin 

throughout the country which supports the fact that MERS is NOT a Beneficiary and furthermore has n 

rights or ability to transfer interests or authority in a Deed of Trust to another party. See citing in attache 

Brief by amici curiae, in addition see citing in attached brief by Gregory Taylor Appellant v. Deutsch 

Bank National Trust Company as Trustee for FFMLT 2006-FF4, Mortgage Pass-Through Certificates 

Series 2006-FF4 Appellate APPEAL IN CAUSE NO. 05-2008-CA-065811 as well as State 0 

Washington Supreme Court Ruling in Exhibit 2 supports defendants MERS lack of standing. 

On or about June 5, 2012 Plaintiffs did serve via 1st Class Certified Mailing Return Receipt Requested 

Dispute of Debt as defined in Fair Credit Reporting Act 15 USC §1681, et seq., a Demand ofValidatio 

under Fair Debt Collection Practices Act 15 USC § 1601, and a Qualified Written Request - Real Estat 

Settlement Procedures Act (RESPA) 12 U.S.C. § 2605(e); Regulation X at 24 C.F.R. § 3500 et seq. Truth 

In-Lending-Act (TILA) § 1604(e), 15 U.S.C. §§ 1601 et seq. (1968) and 1692 et seq., Constructive Lega 

Notice of Lawful Debt Demand in an attempt to validate the true entity holding beneficial interest. 

IV. INFLICTION OF EMOTIONAL DISTRESS 

Plaintiffs repeat and re-allege each and every item and allegation above as if fully and completely set fort 

herein. 

Defendants named in this complaint's conduct with regard to Plaintiffs constitute the tort of outrage an 

entitles Plaintiffs to damages in an amount to be established at the time of trial. 

In the alternative, all of the corporate Defendants' conduct with regard to Plaintiffs constitutes the tort 0 

intentional infliction of emotional distress and/or reckless disregard for the infliction of emotional distress 

which entitles Plaintiffs to an award of damages in an amount to be established at the time of trial. 
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V. SLANDER OF TITLE 

Plaintiffs repeat and re-allege each and every item and allegation above as if fully and completely set fort 

herein. 

All Defendants have caused to be recorded numerous false documents in the records of Pierce County 

Washington, including the original Deed of Trust executed by Plaintiffs containing false statements wit 

regards to MERS' beneficial interest in said Deed of Trust executed by Plaintiffs, Assignments 

Appointment of Successor Trustee, and Notices of Trustee's Sale, which impaired Plaintiffs' title an 

which constitutes slander of title. 

Furthennore, the actions of Defendants regarding the recording of the documents, in contravention of th 

laws of the State of Washington, and the recording of these false documents, having negative impact upo 

and impair the credit scores of Plaintiffs such that it prevents Plaintiffs the ability to obtain financing i 

the fonn of a new mortgage loan or other lines of credit. 

VI. BREACH OF FIDUCIARY DUTY OR QUASI-FIDUCIARY DUTY 

Plaintiffs repeat and re-allege each and every item and allegation above as if fully and completely set fort 

herein. 

Defendants are obligated through their fiduciary duty or quasi-fiduciary duty to Plaintiffs, including bu 

not limited to, providing Plaintiffs with fair and honest disclosure of all facts that might be presumed t 

influence him in regard to its actions, including those facts favorable to a creditor and adverse t 

Plaintiffs' interest as it relates to the mortgage loan. Defendants also had a duty to report truthfu 

infonnation on documents that they recorded in the records of Pierce County, Washington and to act i 

conformity with the laws of the State of Washington and federal laws relation to mortgage servicing, an 

they did not do so. 

VII. VIOLATION OF CONSUMER PROTECTION ACT 

Plaintiffs repeat and re-allege each and every item and allegation above as if fully and completely set fo 

herein. 

Defendants have engaged in a pattern of unfair business practices 

Consumer Protection Act, RCW 19.86 et seq,. Entitling Plaintiffs to damages, 

reasonable attorney fees and costs pursuant to the statute. 
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Plaintiffs alleges that Defendants' actions and inactions have impaired and damaged him, entitlin 

Plaintiffs to damages to be proven at the time oftrial. 

COMPLAIN}: FOR TEMPORARY RESTRAINING ORDER AND ISSUANCE OF A 

PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION 

By way of the filing of a separate motion, Plaintiffs will move for issuance of temporary restraining orde 

and a preliminary injunction in order to stop the foreclosure sale. 

In order to obtain an injunction, a Plaintiffs must show that: (1) he has a clear legal or equitable right; (2 

that he has a well-grounded fear of immediate invasion of that right, and (3) that the acts complained 0 

are either resulting in or will result in actual and substantial injury to him. Kucera v. State, Dept. 0 

Transportation, 140 Wn.2d 200, 209, 995 P 2d 63 (2000). Such criteria is evaluated by balancing th 

relative interests of the parties, and if appropriate, the interest of the public. Ultimately, the decision t 

grant a preliminary injunction is within the sound discretion of the trial court, with such discretion to b 

exercised according to circumstances of each particular case. Washington Fed'n of State Employees v 

State, 99 Wn.2d 878, 887 (1983) (citations omitted). 

IX. VIOLATIONS OF FAIR DEBT COLLECTION PRACTICES ACT 

Plaintiffs repeat and re-allege each and every item and allegation above as if fully and completely set fo 

herein. 

The Defendants SELENE FINANCE LP, CREDIT SUISSE FINANCIAL CORPORATION and U 

BANK TRUST, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION are all credit lenders and as such are governed under th 

law by The Fair Credit Reporting Act 15 USC § 1681,et seq. and also reports these accounts to th 

national credit reporting agencies i.e. Trans Union, Equifax, Experian and Innovis all national credi 

reporting agencies. The State of Washington abides by and adheres to these laws. Specifically the Fa· 

Credit reporting Act 15 USC § 1681, et seq. and FDCPA and §1681p of the FCRA. The Defendants ar 

governed under these laws. 

The Plaintiffs denies ever having any contractual agreement for credit, loans or services relationship wit 

these Defendants. 

Even if the Plaintiffs did have such an agreement, which the Plaintiffs deny, the alleged debt is not i 

question. However the fact as to how it was or was not validated and wrongful actions of the Defendan 

in an attempt to collect a debt and credit reporting of the alleged debt, violated the civil right of th 
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Plaintiffs and the law as outlined in The Fair Credit Reporting Act 15 USC § 1681,et seq. Fair Deb 

Collection Practices Act §1601 et seq. 

No evidence of any account/debt has been received from Defendants NMS, BNKM to indicate an 

evidence of any alleged debt. 

Defendants SELENE FINANCE LP, CREDIT SUISSE FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND US B 

TRUST, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION have entered derogatory information into the Plaintiffs Tran 

Union and Experian and Equifax Credit Reports indicating that both of the alleged Defendants wer 

attempting to collecting on the alleged account simultaneously and each were also reporting derogato 

information that the alleged account was past due and Foreclosure has been initiated. Without providin 

documentation or evidence of the alleged account Defendant did perform continuous collection activit 

prior to providing said documentation or evidence of the alleged account. To date, the false repo 

remain an item on Plaintiffs credit report, as Defendants continue to report negative and false informatio 

with regard to Plaintiffs' account(s). 

x. VIOLATIONS OF THE FAIR CREDIT REPORTING ACT 

Plaintiffs repeat and re-allege each and every item and allegation above as if fully and completely set fo 

herein. 

According to the Fair credit reporting Act, section 623. Responsibilities of furnishing information t 

consumer reporting agencies 15 USC § 1681s-2 

10.2.1 (a) Duty offumishing information to provide accurate information 

10.2.1.1 (1) Prohibition. 

10.2.1 .1.1 (A) Reporting information with actual knowledge of errors. A person shall n 

furnish any information relating to a consumer · to any consumer-reportin 

agency if the person knows or consciously avoids knowing that the informatio 

is inaccurate. 

10.2.l.2 (8) Reporting information after notice and confirmation of errors. A person shall n 

furnish information relating to a consumer to any consumer-reporting agency if 

10.2.1.2.1 (i) The person has been notified by the consumer, at the address specified b 

the person for such notices, that specific information is inaccurate; and (ii) th 

information is, in fact, inaccurate. 

ERIK MOSErD AND DIANNA MOSEID - Complaint for TRO PageS of20 

APPENDIX -9 

II 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

2 1 

22 

23 

2 4 

25 

Case 2:13-cv-00363-MJP Document 1 Filed 02/28/13 Page 9 of 34 

10.2.1.3 (2) Duty to correct and update information. A person who 

10.2.1.3.1 (A) Regularly and in the ordinary course of business furnishes information t 

one or more consumer reporting agencies about the person's transactions 0 

experiences with any consumer; and 

10.2.1.3.2 (B) has furnished to a consumer reporting agency information that the perso 

determines is not complete or accurate, shall promptly notify the consume 

reporting agency of that determination and provide to the agency an 

corrections to that information, or any additional information, that is necessar 

to make the information provided by the person to the agency complete an 

accurate, and shall not thereafter furnish to the agency any of the informatio 

that remains not complete or accurate. 

10.2.1.4 (3) Duty to provide notice of dispute. If the completeness or accuracy of an 

information furnished by any person to any consumer reporting agency is dispute 

to such person by a consumer, the persona may not furnish the information to an 

consumer reporting agency without notice that such information is disputed by th 

consumer. 

1 0.2.1.4.1 (b) Duties of furnishing information upon notice of dispute. 

10.2.1.4.2 (1) In general. After receiving notice pursuant to section 6 11 (a)(2) § 168li of 

dispute with regard to the completeness or accuracy of any informatio 

provided by a person to a consumer reporting agency, the person shall (A 

conduct an investigation with respect to the disputed information; 

10.2.1.4.3 (b) Review all relevant information provided by the consumer reporting agenc 

pursuantto section 611(a)(2) [§1681 i] 

10.2.1.4.4 (c) Report the results of the investigation to the consumer reporting agency 

and 

10.2.1.4.5 (d) If the investigation finds that the information is incomplete or inaccurate 

report those results to all other consumer reporting agencies to which th 

person furnished the information and that compile and maintain files 0 

consumers on a nationwide basis. 
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10.2.1.5 (2) Deadline. A person shall complete all investigations, reviews, 

required under paragraph (1) regarding information provided by the person to 

consumer reporting agency, before the expiration of the period under sectio 

611(a){l) [§1681i] within which the consumer reporting agency is required t 

complete actions required by that section regarding that information. 

10.2.1.6 The Defendants have reported this account to all three bureaus and have update 

same for a period of six months in all three bureaus with erroneous and inaccurat 

infonnation through today as they have not provided validation of the allege 

debt/account. 

Failure to mark the account in Dispute 

10.3.1 According to the Fair Credit Reporting Act, section 623, Responsibilities of furnishin 

information to consumer reporting agencies [15 USC § 1681s-2] 

1O.3.1.1 (a) Duty·offurnishing information to provide accurate infonnation 

10.3 .1.1.1 (1 )Prohibition 

10.3.1.2 

10.3.1.3 

(A) Reporting information with actual knowledge of errors. A person shall no 

furnish any information relating to a consumer to any consumer-reporting agency i 

the person knows or consciously avoids knowing that the information is inaccurate. 

(8) Reporting information after notice and confirmation of errors. A person shal 

not furnish information relating to a consumer to any consumer-reporting agency if 

10.3 .1.3.1 a. The person has been notified by the consumer at the address specified by th 

person for such notices that specific infonnation is inaccurate; and 

10.3 .1.3.2 b. The information is, in fact, inaccurate 

10.3.1.4 (C) Duty to correct and update information. A person who 

10.3 .1.4.1 (A) regularly and in the ordinary course of business furnishes information t 

one or more consumer reporting agencies about the person's transactions 0 

experiences with any consumer, and 

10.3.1.4.2 (8) has furnished to a consumer reporting agency of that determination an 

provide to the agency any corrections to that information, or any additiona 
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XI. 

information, that is necessary to make the information provided by the perso 

to the agency complete and accurate 

VIOLATIONS OF THE REAL ESTATE SETTLEMENTS PROCEDURES ACT 

Plaintiffs repeat and re-allege each and every item and allegation above as if fully and completely set fort 

herein. 

Defendants SELENE FINANCE LP, CREDIT SUISSE FINANCIAL CORPORATION, US B 

TRUST, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION and MERS are all required to comply with the requirements ofth 

Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act ("RESPA"), 12 USC § 2601, et seq. in connection with th 

servicing of Plaintiffs' mortgage loan. Plaintiffs maintain that after numerous attempt to do so, have no 

been provided with timely and truthful information regarding the ownership and/or servicing of thi 

mortgage loan by any Defendants once the loan was purportedly transferred for ownership and/o 

servicing improperly by Defendant MERS or whomever may be the current holder of said Promisso 

note, which is currently unknown due to the above listed Defendants refusal to provide Plaintiffs with 

complete and accurate chain of title (beneficial interest). 

Furthermore, notice of any of above purported transfers of ownership and/or servicing rights have no 

been provided to Plaintiffs in writing at least IS days before the effective date of the transfer or at all 

Plaintiffs' only notice was by way of a Notice of Trustee Sale posted on the door of the property. All 0 

these actions violated RESPA, 12 USC § 2605. 

XII. JURY DEMAND 

Pursuant to Civil Rule 38, Plaintiffs demand ajury by trial on all issues and the required fee has or will b 

XIII. PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

21 Wherefore, having set forth various causes of action against Defendants, Plaintiffs move for the following relief: 

22 13.1 That judgment be entered against all of the Defendants awarding Plaintiffs damages in an amount to b 

23 
established at the time of trial; 

24 

25 
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13.2 That the actions of all the Defendants be determined to be unfair and deceptive business practices i 

violation of RCW 19.86, et seq. and that this Court award all such relief to Plaintiffs as he may e entitled to unde 

the Consumer Protection Act, including Treble damages and an award of costs and attorney's fees (if any); 

3 13.3 That the Plaintiffs be awarded consequential damages, including attorney's fees (if any) incurred to brin 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

this action and all other attorney's fees (if any) incurred in defending against the actions of the Defendan 

described more particularly above, in an amount to be fully established at the time oftrial; 

13.4 That the Plaintiffs be awarded their fees and cost pursuant to the written agreements upon which th 

Defendants are attempting to rely; 

13.5 That the Plaintiffs be awarded statutory damages available under any applicable statues, includin 

RESPA, 12 USC § 2605; 

13.6 Plaintiffs demands judgment in the amount to be determined at the time of trail for Violations of Fai 

Credit Reporting Act 15 USC §1681; 

13.7 Plaintiffs Demands judgment in an amount to be determined at the time .of trial for violations of Fair Deb 

Collection Practices Act 15 USC § 1601; and 

13.8 That the Court awards such other relief as it deems just and proper. 

13.9 Defendants return the GENUINE ORIGINAL PROMISSORY NOTE and ALL MONEY PAID (b 

15 Plaintiffs to Defendants, with a full disclosure of accounting of such) to Plaintiffs forthwith; 

16 13.10 If Defendants are not able to return the GENUINE ORIGINAL PROMISSORY NOTE to Plaintiffi 

forthwith then Defendants are therefore admitting to Defendants' unlawful attempt to convert real property withou 
17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

cause and/or right. 

13.11 Defendants present to Plaintiffs and this Court an Affidavit stipulating that Defendants have NO RIGHT 

to the real property in question. 

13.12 If Defendants do not STATE THE CLAIM UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that Defendants are th 

CREDITOR in this instant matter, Defendants agree to accept Judgment by Default in favor of Plaintiffs. 

13.13 If Defendant- LAW OFFICES OF KAREN L GIDBSON, P.S does not STATE THE CLAIM UNDE 

23 PENALTY OF PERJURY that Defendant- LAW OFFICES OF KAREN L GIDBSON, P.S is not earning directl 

or indirectly or through any means whatsoever any material fees, percentages, kickbacks, credits or other materia 
24 

benefits inconsistent with its position as an objective third party functionary, Defendant- LAW OFFICES 0 

25 
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KAREN L GIBBSON, P.S is therefore admitting that the Defendant- LAW OFFICES OF KAREN L GIBBSON, 

P.S is being or has been unjustly enriched by the sale and recording of Trustee Deed. 

The Plaintiffs verified that these statements are true and correct to the best of his knowledge under 

penalty of petj ury. 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: This 2.8 -+nday of~;: in the year, of our Lord, 2013. 

f~ 
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Dianna Moseid, Pro Per 
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Verified Affidavit 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we, ERIK MOSEID AND DIANNA MOSEID declare that we, having written th 

foregoing and know its contents to be true, certain, correct and complete, sworn to before our Creator and i 

the presence of two witnesses whose autographs appear below. The above is given freely and is under our ful 

unlimited commercial liability. 

Further, Affiants sayeth Naught. 

Erik Moseid 

Dianna Moseid (seal) 

JURAT 
State of WASHINGTON ) 

County of--'-b.L!°I..L'"9-""l-__ _ 
) sworn and subscribed: 
) 

Signature:-I,;,,..t..(,~A4 ___ -+~-""4r..w'bl _____ --.iiEC---'-_""'II"I',,*""'---
(seal) 

NOTICE TO PRINCIPALS IS NOTICE TO AGENTS, NOTICE TO AGENTS IS NOTICE TO PRINCIPAL 

To Agents and Actors for the state of Washington, Agents and Actors for the several states and Agents fo 

the United States, their successors in interest, or assigns: 

With respect, your Plainffs herby duly accepts your Oath of Office, being your open and binding offer 0 

contract to form a firm and binding, private contract between you and Affiants. It is Plainffs' understanding tha 

when you said "so help me God", you did swear, and are bound by your word that you would perform all of yo 

promises including, but not limited to, your promise to uphold the Constitution of the united States of America an 

the Constitution of the State of Washington, which includes protecting all of your Plainffs' rights as an honorabl 

man or woman, whose word is his or her bond, and your promise to honor your private contract with this Plainffs 
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completed by this notice of acceptance, by keeping your promises, and not allow any third-party agents actin 

without delegated or regulatory authority, to interfere in your duty to Plainffs. 

This implied contract comes into full force by your actions to trespass upon the rights and freedoms of the lawfu 

living man and woman, ERIK MOSEID AND DIANNA MOSEID, whom you have openly sworn to protect. 

Should any listed officer or agent fail to rebut this Acceptance of Oath of Office contract, this document shall serv 

as your agreement by contract as written by tacit procuration. 

STATE OF wash\~a 

COUNTY OF _-'-K ..... \ ..... ~.-.... ____ _ 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

) 
) Scilicet 
) 

On R:btlru~ 25+h ,2013 before me c.a.:i leneHtgr1zt.. , a Notary 

Public personally appeared ERIK MOSEID AND DIANNA MOSEID who proved to be on the basis of 

satisfactory evidence to be person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged 

to me that he/she/they executed the same in hislher/their authorized capacity (ies) and by hislher/their signature on 

the instrument the person(s) acted, or executed the instrument. I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the 

laws of the State of [Notary State] that the foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

Signature -L~I..&.!;~l:::::::.::p.r.ua.u~~------+ 

(Seal) 
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Exhibit #1 - Deed of Trust 
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t.enda,; (iJlJ)e r¢~:I/IICDto! Hie Loan, and all ',,""Wal&, CXlMsiOllS. and modificstiofll. of Il)e NQte; and 
(ill ll\c pe(formaJlce of Borr!)IYCf" COV<:Mn(& alld ~(lI;me.n1l 00dt:r tlUs SeCurilY IlI$llull!eIIt . and tm 
NOI¢. For th~ PU~. BOrrOWCl irrero~ly gr.snloond collVC)'l 10 nU51ce, in lellS., Willi JRI'IWlI" of 
$sJe; !.be fol/pwing deiuibod property IocJkd ill lite County o! KING: 

which curronlly bu. Ih~ a4dr_ of IZ708 167I'H PU.CE N5, 

~MC;>ND, WASHINGTON 1-" ~~ 

WASt1tNGTON • Slit,. Family • _ • . ~ "'" u~ 1N8TRUIIENT 
form _ 1101 {PtIigc.3 d '3,. .. J 

1IIIIIIIIIIIIIElllllllflll~IIII~111111111 
P+07OOf81!1OJ_+03i-f3+W~OT 

APPENDIX -20 

: 



Case 2:13-cv-00363-MJP Document 1 Filed 02/28/13 Page 20 of 34 

2006112SOO1410.:: 

Loan No: 100<182791 Data iD: 926 

. 1'OGETHER WITH aU the illIprOV¢llRllll$ . 09W or hci>ca!lcr 0rCl;Icd 011 . tile Prop~, and aU 
c.II$OOIC\I\I>, appurtenances,lUlI! · fi!l1W'Q Il!lW (lr lHire;iflilr • part of tho prOjleJty. AJl1epla~lI · NJCI 
.d4lI!oos shall aJso be Q1¥ered \If .1b4St.:urily WIt'UlIltIII. All or I~ rasqoillCis ~ 10 In this 
~l1r !/IIlrument ~,1Ilt ·p1<lperty.r $<It/6wcr umerstallllS ao4 agEC:Cl lna~ M.HRS biJldt only .. ~ 
IIlle .to 11)o~" IJIInted btBOITowet mibis. S\\c;\Irityl.l1Slrumenl. bill, if~ 10 «Imp!)'. with 
law o,r C\.Iitj)m, MERS (3$ ~. for l.ctJdq .aDd l..M;Ier'1 ,_ aJWI asai&lI$) Ms tile rijbf: 10 
~fCIMI any of aU oflhoe IntOres.... lIlCIu~in8. bu.1 not JiInIIed. 10. tbe rljhl 10 forCdosC .iII! soli Ibe 
Pl'OJ'I'Imalld 10 ~ 80f acIiIJQ . ~ of Un<hir lIIcIlldia& I>ul IIOt limJc'd IO, . teleasiaa and 
canCeling lhis Sceuriiy I~ · . . 

. . lJOlU~QWER cqVBNANT$ Iflat. Borrower. iI lawfully seioc'd ollho Nlate lief@)' ClC>IlVeyc'd and 
has IIlI) rlahl 10 IJIIDl ~ conllq< the Property IIIUI ibal tile P/QP'CII1Y Is UDeQCUlllIictM, apopl for 
Cdi;>imbranoos of Jl;(Qrd. Bo~ ._"_1114 will ck':&n4penll1 the tit!c \0 IbCl'ropc;ty II8JlmI 
aU dam:- . tiM demands, "'bjeel 10 · any encumbrl_ Of I'CC>OI'd. 

THis sscVF,n1' INSTRlJMf!)oIT ·comIIioec \1lIl{()rm ~" for IlllIiomIJ .0 aQCi IIOn'!1lliforlll 
cqvc:na.1\Il wilh 1iaUIeiI· Y\tr:ia\Jol\!.by jlllfs4lcli(lti 10 OO1Klituic a 1II1if!>rm SO':IIlily io$UUmCnl ~riilg 
r<ial properly. 

UI'I1FORM COVENANT; !lorrO~r ao4 LeD4er ~.iI ~ ~ lis folloM: 
1. ra1l!lellt or PrincJjNIt Intel'O$l, Eta- lieall, Prtt~ .~ ."d · Late ~, 

Borrower shall pay w/len 4PC -!lie principal ol, ai1d iAler.t on; \be ~. i:vIdencoed by IIIe NOle .04 . 8SIY 
p~}'llKlnldlarlJC$lUIII. Jato ~ 4tIe IIluIer tbe No'«- 8otroWet ,ball also pay IU.lld$for ~ 
!~ PlII'uamlO~1CHI 3.. ~ due uodc II» /IIOleand tIIk Security lnUJ\IlIMIIIt dIal.llw!1II8do 
10 U.s.~. ·Iiowwec. it -Ill "'**. or 0IIler WII1J1IIeJIt ~ by LcInder, ... peymclll under lbe 
~e or "* SCcwilr lnafMIICIII .• )I ~umeo 10 l..aIder U!Jpaill, ~ JIIIJ rcqWc tbN aJ9'. 01 .all 
slibseq~ ~ cluO 'WJdcr tho Wor..~ IbiI .SccarlIy tl»ll'\lllltJlll be made In ollO,QfiDocO o(tho 

fO~. ins ~ as scIecteiS ,by. tendcr~ aslr; M .. inoIIey. ... . crder... ' <.\;.) COJ1l(ied. 1lhtII:t.. . . baa!< c:bcd::; 
tJealwer's c:IIod; .. or \:Nbier\ clicek. P . ... hid1 dieCt • · .... wn \\pOll an ~R tI'boiIe 
\1cpc:ISIt$ ~. ill6iuMliy a ~ apey, ulJua-.C!llalily.Ot onUty; or {II) ElecttQl\fi:: fUmk Tl&lRfer. 

Pa:rinall< are dMlliod rccoiwM 111 Lond<lr wben rCiCclVocl ftl Ihe ·loaIllol) delllnaled io iIJo Note 
or. at suj:h olher Ioealioll .. may be desiplale4 by I.ondel' in accor48nce ",lib IIMI notice· f'I.04'HlQs in 
Sociioll lS. Undllf m ... y return any pay_ or parllal parmelll if IbopaytllOlll or penitl ·paymenu 
are msoUiCienl . 10briOC rbe Loan .curren\. l.onder may ICCqII 8l!:r payment or panial paytllClll 
i/But6cieru 10 00Dg Ibt r.q.1I ClUioIII, wilhOIll waiver of ail1 JiaIdi ~o, prejudb IQ it. if&hU 
10 . .".r~ ~ peysIIMI o.r pa,I_' paymalts in lbe future, 1>111 I...eIIder j; DOl o.Iililale4 10 apJllt web 
pa,mc:ma ~ l\le ~'A ~. are aCCIJ9M\1. U.eada Pcriodlc ~I • ap,-.• or lis 
scllc'duled due ~ .·lMa LcD40r ncc4 1101 p.y ~ 1m l1DIIppllOil funds. . Lon4cIr IIlIIJ hOI4 web 
ClIllpPW fll*lt IUwl Bor ___ pIlJIIIeJIl to ~111o loN!. alllUQ. If Batrower doe& _ cIo. 
'0. wltHl a lOIIO_bla J"'I:iod of Uw., Lel!der $JIll. CIiIhet ·eppl1 .fI)dIllllids Of tclUI1I. lbem 10 :Bomwer. 
ltllOl IpplIc4 -a., '#r ....... be.JIPIicd 10 the 0IJ1Il8DdIn& priocipal ~. ullder 1116 Note , 
im1lICdIat~ prior 10 r~'1JIJ!, No 0II$I)I or cIllm wlIIdI Borrower .' ~ flOW or In th.e M~ 
againll ~. shall re~· Boi'_ fJam-tin& PI'!'JIIetIls due un4ilr \be ~ote iI\I4 this $eeIU!ly 
I .. lrllJllenJ or perform .. tile ~$ 1II1)d Oc-meal' ~ by IIli seauily Instr"mML 

:t. ~~ 0" l'a~ or l'~ I!&clopl" o\bcrwilo deseribed In Ibi& SecIioII ~ .u 
payments:. actepIed 104 applied bY lender .sball be applied Inthc· C~ older of ptiorlly: (_) inleles\ 
due under lbio Note; thl principel duo IIIldcr II¥: No.le; (cJ amounH due.. . u!l<fer SedioQl. Such 
j>a!IlI~ dIalJ b&appIied 10 each Periodic Pilyment in (b6 ord8r in which il I!ocaI!lC ckie. AIIy 
remaini1l& _""" shila. be appJlcd1im ~ . II~ ~ $CCi01lll1O 811)' otbeT amounu dllOWIdcr tim 
50curily IlIIlfll~ inlllben .10 reduc» tbe priDc:lJHIl liallloceollho 1:101~ . 

1C UPder ~ II jiaymoal !fOII\ Borrowet fOr a dellDl)llall PeriodiO· I'Ii)oDIeIII \\tlkiJ ind\Ides 
a lufbcfcnt I1/aOlIIII 10 pay aJIf laIC .c:Iiu&e due, 11K: JIII1IIicnl IIIq bClpplied 10 I~ cIcIiJMI~ paymml 
·ancl lbe laic ~bar.,. If ~ lball ODC Periodic Paymcm il ouUlapdlns. LcncIor may 1I9P\Y aoy pey1I1OII1 
~ from B<irrOMl' 10 tbe "'PlIIy .... of tbe Periodic ~ r, at)d 10 1110 cxIcnI ~ ead1 
paymen.1 C8J1. b6 .~ ... iD full. .. To ~CIt. 1cIIl. II11t any._ exiIfS after I~ pa)'lMIlI. is.lp. Ptwn .I.O lbe 
full I'~. of 000 OllllOro PeriOdic hY'ft\C!ill$. Iud) m:eI$ DIll!' \)e applied 10 any laic charp due. 
VoIun1a!y PIqlIIYIIICfIIS ,ball beap»1Icd rim 10 Ul' ~ymem cblqef; .00 lben l!I dcIsaibe4 in Ibe 
Nolt;. 

Any application of pBylllCn", i ... ~nce p~, or MlsoeJlaneous Pr0eee4s II) pri~. due 
\,IMer the Note than nol ~ten<l Of pOstpoDCl \be ~l.Ie date, or chRnte lbo amolllll. or lbe />01100'" 
'paymen ... 

WASHINGTON ·Shglo ferily . F_ MW""- Mee 1IMI'.0fIM INSTfWMENT 
f_ __ 1.'0.1 (hge of of i31'agM' 

1IIIIIImllnllll~IIIIUmIIIIIIIIDIIIIIIIIIII~1 
P .. I17IlO4827tI'l-$72&+Oi H'+WACN\IAOT 
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1011111111111111111111111111111111111111111 
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WASHINGTON · Siovf. Fomly. """"It. _MdIe ..... UHlFOIIM ~T 
_ aoca 1101 ~ f oI 1~ ".g.a} 

11111111111111111II11111111111I111111~lIlm 
P~71I1_ .. C& .. lhWACNVI'OT 

APPENDIX -26 

.-._._.-._.-... -... _ ...... -.-... _-"-._,.,, '-'- ' .- ... -----------. - 1 



Case 2:13-cv-00363-MJP Document 1 Filed 02/28/13 Page 26 of 34 

20(161129001410.':: : 

Loan NQ: 700482'19l 

WASHINGTON - Sir'I!Io F""'iIr - ....... 10 MaWfroddle Mtoci ~ IHSTRUMENT 
"- _ 1/at ,. tq 01 '$ "*g •• ) 

1IIImlllllllllilltlllllllllllllllllllillBIIII . 
P+~i+8ns .. '0~I·HWN::HIAOT 

APPENDIX -27 

I 



Case 2:13-cv-00363-MJP Document 1 Filed 02/28/13 Page 27 of 34 

20061f29001410,ui 

Dala 10: 926 
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LEGAL DESCRlPTION 

Provi4elelll! description bere; AJt.aeb 10 tho dOC\IJIICnl 10 be recorded an4 610 as one 
ill.tnimcot 

,.. 13 '" " ".., 

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIBIIIIII~IHIIII~IIIIIIIIIU 
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CHICAGO TlTL.E INSURANCE COMPANY 

Order 1'10.: ~l222Q3S 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

TfiAT PORT!oN OF THE .. sotrEliIfE$T QUARTER OF niB NORntWEST' QUARTER-OF SScTION 
:15, TOwNSHIP 2~·NoR'l'H. RANGB 5 v.$T. ~r:r..Ll\MET't'E i$R.rDIAN, IN JU:I>IG OOVN'rY', 
I4.ASflING'I'ON, OES.~IllED 1\$. FOLLOWS, 

coMMBNcUIG· AT .T!lB N"OaTHWBST CORN~ OF SAIl) SOlDI'n:~IONI 
nIE1'{CB SOUTH 2"H! i9" WJS1'ALOHG TIm I9ESr LXNI: TIU!:REOF :JO ;00 FEET: 
~B SOUTlf 8S·38'07" BAST PARALLB.[' lIl'l'lJ 'l'HB NORTK t.INB OF SAID 
SUSDIVISIOlf IOU;.3 FEET; 

'l1tENCB sOUTH H·l~'J6" WEST 234.is FEET TO THB TRUB POINT OF peINNING, 
'l'I:lBNcl! SOUTH 3 O· 04' OP EASt 4!J6. 41) FSST TO THB NORTH LrNE OF TIiE !fAST HALF 
Or' THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER Of' THE SOUTIIliEST QUARTER OF Tile NORTI-!WSsT QI1AR'l'ER 
OF SAID SBCTION 25; 
THIWC£ NORTH 8S'",,'lS" waST AJ"ONQ SAID blOR'IH LINB, 21)2 , &~· PBET. 'Fe) TtlE 
rsORTRWsST CORNER Of!' SAID EAST HALF; 
THEIiICE SOO'l'H2·13'02· 1fES'l.l\LONQ 'llIEWEST LlN8 Of' SAID BAST }{ALl' 163 . 15 
F.EE'l' TO THE NOR'IllEJU,Y w.ilGIli otJl'ORTllKM'I' .1.24'1'H $'1'RnT; 
n!ENCB SOUTH 64 '07' 59" WEST AUJNO THE NORnmRLY KARGI)! !tfL 80 f'BBT; 
nt:BNCE NOlttH nOS7! 24" WI!:ST 528.05 F.&BT, 
T.lf£'JlCE NOR'Ill 67·15 '.00' EAST 114.97 FBET; 
THEIICE NOlttH SO"1S' 4S' !/\ST. 151.40 FEET TO THB TRUE pOINT OF BIIGINNI»G: 

TOGsntER WITH AN E1\SJOOlIllT FOR INGRESS, BGRBSS J\ND UTILITiES OVSR, Ul/P.ER 
AND ACROSS 'l'Hl! NORn! )0 , 00 FEE'l'OP SAID SOUTBltBS'r QUARTBR OF nm. NORTRI'IEST 

.QtlAATERANP OVER, UNDER 1\Nl:> ACROSS A STRIP OF LAND 30.00 .f'ZBT I .N. WIDT1I:, 
THE NORTHWESTERLY li;IJIE TilBRBol" BBING DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS, 

t~t,NG A'r THB ltORTIIlIE8'l' ·CORNBR OF SAtD SOUTBWEST QUARTER OF ma 
NORTBWSST QUAR1'KR; 
THENCB SOUTH 2°1.4'19" WEST ALONG TIm WSS'l' LINE: TJ!BRE011 30,00 FSBTI 
THBNCESOUTJI8s-03S'07" 8AST. PAAALt.BL WITH '1.'K2 NORTH LINB.OFSAIl) 
SUBDIVISION LOU. 4 3 1"8£1 TO THB TatiB POnI'!' OF BEOIIOJING OFTHlS LIlf,e 
DESClU PTICiIl ; 
'lifENCB SOUTH 24·19 ' 36" WBr:n' 334.15 FBBT; 
'!'HaNCE SOUTH S0015' '5' WEST 151 .• 0 FilET; 
THli:NCS SOUTH 67°1.6'00' WEST 32-9,56 FEET TO THE BND. OF n!rs LIJ!lI! 
DESCRiPTION ; 

EXCEPT 1\NY PORTION 'I'HBRE01' LYING WITHIll THE MAIN TRACT. 
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ADJUSTABLE RATE RIDER 
(l..I80R Si%·Montf\ la.M (At PubUaIMd I"~~w.ll ~ 5o..n.i)'-lble CIp8) 

(Inteml Quly! AlUl) . .. 

, nU$ 1\.QJUS'fA8LE RATF. RIDEI/. il m_ this 111b dIIyo( November, 2006. aM il-JllCOl'pOraled 
mW ~d'ballb~decm"d lOa~lIdand ~pIeroeQI lbe MoJ'l&88Cr .O«.<1 ofT'Uil,or Security Oc;c4{lbu 
,'Secun!, 1o",,_. ~11 <;.( !he.~ ale givell by lbe UIIChlrsigMd.' .. C·Sorro .... r') . "10. lCClH'.' C Borrower" 
Adjutlable RAllo Nolio (1!Jc "Note") 10 CReDIT ~VJSSB FlNM-ICIAl.. {'''ORPOitA:no/'l rl.C!lderj 0( 
lbe same dalG and COOCIld8 1M properly deuribccI. la lhe ScQaily b!S111IIIICIl1 and klcated al: 

12708 167111 PLACl! NE. 
REDMoND, WASHINGToN 9IJOS2 

~-.... 

ntENOTE CONTAINS l"R~VlSIONs ALLOWrNc J'O~ CllANGES IN THE INTEREST RATE 
AND UtE MOjIITHLY. PAYMENT. ;iH~ ~ J.D,Jl'fS THE AMOUNT. OOk.RO~ 
IN'TER~" Mm CAN CUANCEA'f ANY ONE TIME ANI) 'filE J\fAX1MUM RA'l'E 
BOItROWIlR MU~T PAY. 

ADDITIQNAL U)W.NJ\NTS, In addilien. 10 the QlVC/lancaaJKI agr<>emMIat ~ in lbe $cWrlly 
11ll11umeol. B<»:rowcr and~.-r /urlbe. ~nl.nd aaree as kl/1Ows: 
A. INTElUtSl'MTE AND MONTJII..Y I'A.¥MENT CJ1ANGIlS ' 

Tho I'/ole · providci lOr III illi~ Inlcrcl riic 0( 6.J2S '" TIle Nole alloprorides · (or cIianael in ·lfIo 
intCfe&i rlie and lbe monthly pp'lIleIllla lo~ 
3. PAnt&N'ffl 

lA' n_.n."'-' ofl'a)l!llellli 
r will piiy imcr- only ~ makmc p«.ymcnlS every mouIh (or tbc rm 1:ID paymelllS ltm'lnt~c·OnIy 

l>eriQlr) JII \lie ~unl IIdrIciQt ~ pq tile int<;rClt • • .a:r_, &err IIlOflIh tllcrcdcr I 'IriII pay 
priacipat ~ ~ by making P:a1/1)11.D1$ iR ." amounC NfTIcIcoI 10 (UIlyIlIllOl1i1Jo Ihc ~lsIandll\l 
priiIap.ai balance ol.1he NolC at Ibc Qil. of Jl\illntei1:ll-O!d't Perkld ovei IbC · ~ IenII of I .... Not ... 
TlIC! p1ille;p.lal¥f iulChlll PII)'1M9I I pay may <:hi. lIS. Ibe· it)teresl ftIe 1 JiIIlI d1IIlJ1C1 p!l7$WIIIl 10 
Scctloo <I oflh. Note. 

I "'ill m&kemOnlhly ~nien~ 00 !he ffrs.tdllfof CldlmonIh lqinning JaDOl/)' 1,1Im. I will . mIlkc 
1!teI<: parme.tJ.; . ..-y mooIh W!IiI r bil\ic paJcl all of lbe ~paI and .1n{enIt1 IDII any olher: dJarga 
oo.criMd bc>lr1w lhal 11114, QfjO ulMlor lhis Nole. Ead! mOnlhl1 . P!lY*DC will be IfIPIied as Df 11$ 
ICIlCIIIlIIid duo.\I!IIo and will be~d .10 inlercat ~. principaI. .' H, all ~ a. .~ 1 "II . \IWC 
4Il)OuiUs under lhit Nok, J . will PlY llioto ImoUnIlIII1 fuD on tllal dal&, whicIt • caJlccl tho ~ruril'f 
Dale.· . .. 

I will make ~ pa~ at:1O.Z CARNl!CilBCBNfBR,.PJUNCI!TON. NEW.$8SEY 085010, or.1 
It dllfcrCIII .placeit lCqUirl!lCi by Ibc tIOIe. Holder. 

(B) ~ of l\IylDltIaI. Mmui~ 1"1IY_ts 
W ot m,y l1IIlilI lulerat-Oru, miHIfhIr paJ_" WiD be Iu iIiO amQU.Ii( of U.s. $ 3p062.SQ. Tbit 

amouDl _y <:haJIac. 
4, INTERI!Sl' RA're MD MONl'III..Y PAYMENT CHANGES 

tA) Ch8"1" II ...... 
11lc illlerwl ralc I .. ill "" .may CI18ncc on I .... rlfll day 0( DoceIabu, lOU. a.nd C)fl U.al day ':,""IY 6th 

montlJ Uten:aflei. EaCb dale all wl1ich. IllY inlere$c ~cc <lOuld. chlrce 15 called a 'C1liI113C Dale. 

~ R4l1!~_UBOR"""" -..~ ~"'it. __ .JPft. c;."..... "--, 
oaoe ......... ,............ . Ponn_7,1IIIl, I'9'.d3._ 

tll~1111111111111111111111111I11I11I111 
P~I~tlJl+~+tCWIIoIAO 
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Loan No: ~ 
Dala 10: !126 

n Lo.od<:r ~~ 1l\Cl'iption 1(1 require iiumediale paymaJt in [u1~ 1.e~ shftIl pc BorrOY/eJ' 
IIOlIc:e o€ acc>oJcralIOll.. TlIe.·IIQIloe· ,hal pTOYidoa period or nOl las· lbatI 30 dafI frora the dm 
lhe.aoli.:e ~ Fen iD~.llOIIwilbS«rioI11S'wit1Jfu wflleb ~r ll1~f I"lyall ~\lJIB 5eC\IR!(I 
by Ibis Sccurify IlISIrullletlt. If Borrower faib · 19 pay Ihc$e iU"" prior 10 the CIIpiralil'ill (;f IU 
period; tender may illV()" all, r:emcd~~m'inC4 l>y lbi$ Securily liaL!1Imeot wOhoUl further 
noli« Of demand on Borruwcl. 

8ySig~ Below; !3orrolll\lr 0<cep1' and agr<:es 10 the le~ and _nil c>oatalQod in "" 
AdjIi$lJ.bJc. Rate Rider. 

..J~~U m._1Lwtl._ .. _.~Scai) 
DIANNA V M~D -Bolrower 

~.~ 
"--·---'-'-·~·-,;--.- .. -.·-.-•. - -.--•.. _(ScaJ) 
BRIK MOSEiID-~ 
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Dl\la 10: 926 

ORAL AGREEMENTS OR .ORAL COMMlTMJS;NTS TO WAN MONEY, 
EXTEND CREDIT, oaTO fORllEAR, mOM ENFORCING REPA~MENT 
OF A DEBT ARE NOT FfflrORCEABLE UNDER WASIJINGTO}!f lAW. 

BY SIGNiNG B3LOW, Sorro-r a~ ~.i1d ayees. 10 lbe tcr/llS &l1li COI'eIIIlIIl IlOlllaJQed I" 
lUis Sedlrily WlrUhIOIIl too in .anr Rider executed by .9oIIOWW ami recorded w/lb it. 

-,~",t-~·_· .. ~~_ ..... _.~Sca~ 
DIANNA V MOSE1J~-" 

.k..~ __ .. __ ._ .. ___ ._._,.(SeaI) 
ERIK MOSEID_ 

------..... -- r ...... ·_l>foLno Fof_, I OQ'...,. __ "--___ ~ __ 

Slaleo( ~ffi!JiJu'l;';-' f . . 
COwll,. of KING . f 

On Ibis day personally apjleare(l bd01<) me OIANf'fA V MOsao AND ERIK MOSBlD 
10 ml.' I!nOWIl 10 bo II» peI10IIl dcscrlbe4 in. aocl 1fflo "'!CCiIlod lbowilbin . an4 JOI'qlOinft insIrilAlOllI, 
arul ad:1IOWbIJcd tbal lbey' e:tewlod lbe RIme ... Ibcir free aDd.mun1ary . iIDI l1li4 cICed. forthc. usq 
aocl. j'IOqK1S4:1 Iller • .DIeIII~ y / . 

Q~on u~ my Ilarul aIId olfodal ~ Ibis ~~y oC ;Uaraf6tkc . '1tJ&. 
l$<)aIj 

. . (Printed Name) 

WASHINGTON • ~ FetnIy • fennIe MM/fH<IdIe 1liiie UNIFOAM INImMIENT 
'ocm _ tit! ~ 12 0/ 131'1tg1N) 

1lllllllllllmllmllllmlllllDIIIIII~IUIIIIII 
P .. 07004tm. "'f728""~"U"W,t.CNVAOT 
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2 Exhibit #2 - FI Appeal Brief to MERS Assignment, Lack of Standing, etc 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
WESTERN DISTRICT OF WASHINGTON 

AT SEATTLE 

ERIK MOSEID and DIANNA MOSEID, 

Plaintiffs, 

CASE NO. C13-363 MJP 

ORDER GRANTING MOTION TO 
DISMISS 

12 v. 

13 SELENE FINANCE LP, et al. 

14 Defendants. 

15 

16 This matter comes before the Court on Defendant's motion to dismiss all of Plaintiff's 

17 claims pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 12(b)(6) with prejudice. (Dkt. No.6.) Plaintiff did not respond 

18 to the motion. The Court reviewed the motion, the Complaint (Dkt. No.1) and all related 

19 documents and GRANTS the motion to dismiss without prejudice. 

20 
Background 

21 

22 Pro Se Plaintiffs Erik Moseid and Dianna Moseid filed a complaint seeking a 

23 temporary restraining order and permanent injunction, wrongful foreclosure, breach of contract, 

24 
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intentional infliction of emotional distress, slander of title, breach of fiduciary duty, breach of 

2 quasi-fiduciary duty, violation ofthe Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, violations of the Fair 

3 Credit Reporting Act, and violations ofRESPA on February 28, 2013 around I :00 p.m. (Dkt. 

4 No.1.) They filed at the same time a motion for a temporary restraining order ("TRO") (Dkt. No. 

5 2), seeking to stop the foreclosure sale of their home, scheduled for March 1, 2013. (Dkt. No. 1-1 

6 at 138.) The Court denied the motion for a temporary restraining order. (Dkt. No.3.) 

7 

8 

Plaintiffs applied for a home loan from defendant Credit Suisse Financial Corporation 

("Credit Suisse") in 2006 and executed a Deed of Trust, listing the beneficiary as Mortgage 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

Electronic Registration System ("MERS"). (Dkt. No.2 at 2.) On or about May 27,2011, 

Plaintiffs received a notice from Credit Suisse of transfer to creditor Defendant US Bank Trust, 

"soley as owner trustee for CPCA Trust 1 [sic.]," making them the trustee effective March 30, 

2011. (Id. at 3.) Plaintiffs allege there is no assignment of the Deed of Trust recorded in King 

County and no Defendant has provided documentation showing US Bank's interest as creditor, 

lender or holder of the promissory note or deed of trust executed by the Plaintiffs. (Id.) Plaintiffs 

do not dispute they owe the amount in default, $598,290.00. (Dkt. No.1-I at 138.) 

Defendants move to dismiss all of Plaintiffs' claims with prejudice for failure to state a 

claim upon which relief can be granted, pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 12(b)(6). (Dkt. No.6 at 2.) 

Defendants argue Plaintiffs include no facts regarding alleged wrongdoing by any Defendant, do 

not reference any facts related to the subject property, loan, or Deed of Trust, and do not allege 

any facts regarding the origination of the loan. (ld. at 7.) Instead, Defendants say Plaintiffs 

merely recite pleading requirements for numerous causes of action. (Id.) Plaintiffs submitted no 

briefing in response to the motion. Plaintiffs have not acted in the case since the denial of the 

temporary restraining order. 
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Analysis 

2 Local Civil Rule 7(b )(2) says "If a party fails to file papers in opposition to a motion, 

3 such failure may be considered by the court as an admission that the motion has merit." Because 

4 Plaintiff failed to respond, Defendants' allegations on all claims are deemed to have merit 

5 pursuant to CR 7(b)(2). The motion to dismiss is GRANTED and all claims in this case are 

6 DISMISSED. The claims are dismissed without prejudice. 

7 Conclusion 

8 Because Plaintiffs have not responded to Defendants' motion to dismiss, Defendant's 

9 allegations are deemed to have merit and this case is DISMISSED in its entirety, without 

10 prejudice. 

11 

12 The clerk is ordered to provide copies of this order to all counsel. 

13 Dated this 23rd day of April, 2013. 

14 

~~ 
15 

16 
Marsha J. Pechman 

17 Chief United States District Judge 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 
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AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE 

The undersigned declares as follows: 

On mfl t 2? 2rJ it, I served the foregoing documents: RESPONDENT'S BRIEF 

BY SELENE FINANCE LP AS SERVICER AND ATTORNEY IN FACT TO U.S. BANK, 

TRUST, N.A. AS INDENTURE TRUSTEE OF CASTLE PEAK 2011-1 LOAN TRUST, 

MORTGAGE BACKED NOTES, SERIES 2011-1, ERRONEOUSLY SUED AS U.S. 

BANK, N.A. AS TRUSTEE FOR SERIES #2011-1 CERTIFICATES, APPENDIX on the 

following individuals by u.s. Mail, Postage Prepaid: 

Erik Moseid 
12708 167th Place N.E. 
Redmond, Washington 98052 
Tel: (206) 849-5365 
Appellant in Pro Per 

Dianna Moseid 
12708 167th Place N.E. 
Redmond, Washington 98052 
Tel: (206) 849-5365 
Appellant in Pro Per 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the 

foregoing is true a!ld correct to the best of my knowledge. 

-1.~ 15 r or')ia. / DATED:thi~daYOfMaY'2014,atNewportBeaCh::Z. alif~ /.<~ 
- C~~£~ ---=-

Steven E. Bennett 

1 


